
2025_05-05 Ellington Zoning Board of Appeals 
Minutes 

Page 1 of 4 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, MAY 5, 2025, 7:00 PM 
 

IN PERSON ATTENDANCE: TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, CT 
REMOTE ATTENDANCE: ZOOM MEETING  

(ATTENDEES BELOW WERE IN PERSON UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED) 
 

PRESENT: Chairman Sulakshana Thanvanthri, Vice Chairman Katherine Heminway, Regular 
members Ken Braga, Subhra Roy, and Miranda Graziani, Alternates Rodger Hosig, 
and Ron Stomberg 

 
ABSENT:  Alternate Ron Brown 
STAFF 
PRESENT: John Colonese, Assistant Town Planner/Zoning Enforcement Officer, and Barbra 

Galovich, Recording Clerk 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER:  Chairman Sulakshana Thanvanthri called the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 

meeting to order at 7:00 pm.  
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS (ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS): None 
 
III. PUBLIC HEARINGS: None 

  
IV. NEW BUSINESS: 
 

1. V202503 – Dawn and Wayne McBreairty, owner/applicant, request for variance of the 
Ellington Zoning Regulations Section 2.1.10-Highway Clearance Setback & Section 3.2.3-
Minimum Yard Setbacks: to reduce the front yard setback from 55ft to 35ft and the side yard 
setback from 10ft to 5ft for a 30’x50’ attached garage at 131 Pinnacle Road, APN 075-021-
0000 in a Residential (R) zone. 
 

 Time: 7:01 pm 
 Seated: Thanvanthri, Heminway, Braga, Roy and Graziani 
 

Wayne McBreairty, 131 Pinnacle Road and Darrel Chaloult, 21 Holmes Road, Stafford, CT 
were present to represent the application. 
 
Wayne McBreairty explained the existing garage is not large enough to fit a car and would like 
to enlarge the existing garage for vehicles and personal items. Wayne stated there is ledge 
behind the house. Darrel Chaloult stated the house was built when the front yard setback was 
35 feet. Since then, Pinnacle Road is considered a collector street, and the front yard setback 
has been changed from 35 feet to 55 feet. Darrel noted the septic system is located on the 
opposite side of the house from the proposed activity. 
 
Subhra Roy asked if the neighbor’s house is close to where Wayne would like to place the 
garage. Darrel noted there is a private 50’ right of way abutting Wayne’s side yard and no 

  
 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 
INCORPORATED 1786 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 
55 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT  06029-0187 
www.ellington-ct.gov 

 
TEL. (860) 870-3120        TOWN PLANNER’S OFFICE  FAX (860) 870-3122 
 

 

http://www.ellington-ct.gov/


2025_05-05 Ellington Zoning Board of Appeals 
Minutes 

Page 2 of 4 

house on that property.  
 
Vice Chairman Heminway noted no issue with the proposed request and that North Central 
District Health Department has approved a new location for the well. There were no public 
comments regarding the application.  
 
MOVED (BRAGA), SECONDED (ROY) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO CLOSE THE 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR V202503 – Dawn and Wayne McBreairty, owner/applicant, request 
for variance of the Ellington Zoning Regulations Section 2.1.10-Highway Clearance Setback 
& Section 3.2.3-Minimum Yard Setbacks: to reduce the front yard setback from 55ft to 35ft 
and the side yard setback from 10ft to 5ft for a 30’x50’ attached garage at 131 Pinnacle Road, 
APN 075-021-0000 in a Residential (R) zone. 

 
MOVED (BRAGA), SECONDED (HEMINWAY) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO 
APPROVE FOR V202503 – Dawn and Wayne McBreairty, owner/applicant, request for 
variance of the Ellington Zoning Regulations Section 2.1.10-Highway Clearance Setback & 
Section 3.2.3-Minimum Yard Setbacks: to reduce the front yard setback from 55ft to 35ft and 
the side yard setback from 10ft to 5ft for a 30’x50’ attached garage at 131 Pinnacle Road, 
APN 075-021-0000 in a Residential (R) zone. 
 
HARDSHIP: Land configuration and non-conforming dwelling. 

 
2. V202504 – Stephen D. Williams, owner/applicant, request for variance of the Ellington Zoning 

Regulations Section 3.2.3-Minimum Yard Setbacks: to reduce the front yard setback from 35ft 
to 6ft on Wendell Road and the rear yard setback from 25ft to 7ft for changes to previously 
approved Variance V202406 to construct a single-family dwelling at 37 Wendell Road, APN 
169-019-0000 in a Residential (R) zone. 
 
Time: 7:07 pm 
Seated: Thanvanthri, Heminway, Braga, Roy and Graziani 
 
Stephen Williams, 36 Buff Cap Road, Tolland, CT and Attorney Andrew R. Morin, Hinckley 
Allen, 20 Church Street, Hartford, CT were present to represent the application. 
 
Attorney Morin stated Stephen Williams owns the property and noted that Stephen received 
a variance in July 2024. Attorney Morin explained the previous variance was for the front yard 
setback from 35 ft to 9 ft and the rear yard setback was approved from 25 ft to 11 ft. The new 
application request is to reduce the front yard setback from 35 ft to 6ft and rear yard setback 
from 25 ft to 7 ft which is a minor change. A well approval was received from the North Central 
District Health Department on March 10, 2025. On March 17, 2025, the Inland Wetlands 
Agency approved the proposed regulated activity with conditions. Attorney Morin mentioned, 
based on the Wetlands Agency review, the decision was made to move the dwelling further 
away from the wetlands, closer to the road. Attorney Morin noted that Stephen’s parents 
purchased the property as a lot of record. The parcel is .21 acres like other parcels in the 
area. The proposal is for a simple single-family home with a crawl space, gravel driveway and 
serviced by a well and public sewer. 
 
Attorney Morin addressed some of the conditions that were added to the previous variance 
approved in July 2024.  Some of the conditions would need to be met to construct the dwelling 
and do not need to be added as a condition of approval. As for condition 4, which stated the 
dwelling shall be one story, Attorney Morin noted the current Zoning Regulations state the 
dwelling shall not exceed 38 ft and the owner has the right to construction in accordance with 
the regulations. Attorney Morin stated the legal hardship is the wetlands on the property that 
is limiting the buildable area. Attorney Morin reviewed similar court cases stating wetlands on 
a property is a legal hardship.   



2025_05-05 Ellington Zoning Board of Appeals 
Minutes 

Page 3 of 4 

 
Kenneth Wendell, 13 Wendell Road, claimed to meet the zoning regulations in 2007 regarding 
setback requirements combining several lots to construct a dwelling and feels it’s a shame to 
build a structure 7 ft from the road.   
 
Maura Freckelton, 33 Pine Street, asked if the house would have a second story. Attorney 
Morin stated the dwelling can be built up to 38 ft as of right. Stephen Williams stated that 
restricting it to a one-story dwelling is against the regulations. Maura asked about the sewer 
pump location and the 75ft separation from her well. John Colonese stated the North Central 
District Health Department administers regulations related to distances between wells and 
sewer pumps.   
 
Alternate Hosig asked if the steps and overhangs of the dwelling are part of the measurements 
to the setbacks with only one door as means of egress. Stephen Williams said there will be 
one door with safety windows installed. The front door will be in line with the gravel driveway 
and a landing can meet the 10 ft setback. Alternate Hosig noted the Board has received 
drawings of structures in the past. Attorney Morin explained the submitted plan was 
specifically for the request of variance and the elevations of the structure would be completed 
prior to a building permit application. Alternate Stomberg raised concerns about only having 
one means of egress and being so close to the road.  
  
David Freckelton, 33 Pine Street, questioned how a required 3 ft landing from the door will be 
accomplished staying within the proposed setback. David stated that some of the houses in 
the area were built on a dirt road and since then the streets have been improved and 
reconfigured. 
 
Stephen Williams said the proposed dwelling is located on the flattest portion of the property 
which will allow for a flatter entrance. Stephen stated the dwelling will remain within the 
proposed box of 44’x15.6’. Chairman Thanvanthri asked for an engineered house plan, 
Attorney Morin reiterated that the house plans were not engineered because it would not be 
financially reasonable to complete until the variance has been approved. Commissioner Braga 
asked for confirmation that the structure would remain within the proposed footprint, Attorney 
Morin agreed and stated should the footprint change then Stephen would have to come back 
to the Zoning Board of Appeals.  
 
Vice Chairman Heminway recognized that Stephen has met the threshold of a hardship and 
has been wrestling with this issue for a while. Vice Chairman Heminway has no concerns with 
the variance. Commissioner Braga stated this is not the time to approve due to the incomplete 
plans, no hardship and the house is too close to the road. Commissioner Roy confirmed that 
the dwelling would remain within the footprint. Commissioner Graziani would have liked more 
details on the dwelling. 
 
John Colonese noted that he believes the Board can consider bulk and height restrictions on 
the structure. John confirmed with Stephen Williams the requested distances for the variance 
consider the overhangs of the dwelling. 

 
John Colonese stated that the Water Pollution Control Authority (WPCA) Administrator noted 
the plan is subject to WPCA engineering review and comment; the Town Engineer is okay 
with sight distance as noted in an email dated February 27, 2025, and the North Central 
District Health Dept. approved the well location on March 10, 2025. John confirmed with the 
Board that they are okay with not restricting the height of the structure beyond what is allowed 
by the zoning regulations. 
 
MOVED (HEMINWAY), SECONDED (BRAGA) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO CLOSE 
THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR V202504 – Stephen D. Williams, owner/applicant, request for 



2025_05-05 Ellington Zoning Board of Appeals 
Minutes 

Page 4 of 4 

variance of the Ellington Zoning Regulations Section 3.2.3-Minimum Yard Setbacks: to reduce 
the front yard setback from 35ft to 6ft on Wendell Road and the rear yard setback from 25ft to 
7ft for changes to previously approved Variance V202406 to construct a single-family dwelling 
at 37 Wendell Road, APN 169-019-0000 in a Residential (R) zone. 
 
MOVED (HEMINWAY), SECONDED (ROY) (BRAGA – NAY) AND PASSED TO APPROVE 
WITH CONDITION(S) FOR V202504 – Stephen D. Williams, owner/applicant, request for 
variance of the Ellington Zoning Regulations Section 3.2.3-Minimum Yard Setbacks: to reduce 
the front yard setback from 35ft to 6ft on Wendell Road and the rear yard setback from 25ft to 
7ft for changes to previously approved Variance V202406 to construct a single-family dwelling 
at 37 Wendell Road, APN 169-019-0000 in a Residential (R) zone. 
 
CONDITION(S): Approval based on Improvement Location Survey Permit Plan prepared for 

Stephen D. Williams dated 2-23-1996 revised through 4-15-2025 by Gardner 
& Peterson Associates, LLC. 

 
HARDSHIP: Wetlands and topography of property. 
 

V. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS: 
 
1. Approval of April 7, 2025, Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 
MOVED (HEMINWAY), SECONDED (GRAZIANI) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO 
APPROVE THE APRIL 7, 2025, REGULAR MEETING MINUTES AS WRITTEN. 

 
2. Correspondence/Discussion: None 

 
VI. ADJOURNMENT:  
 

MOVED (ROY), SECONDED (GRAZIANI) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO ADJOURN THE 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING AT 7:50 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
_____________________________ 
Barbra Galovich, Recording Clerk 


